# HUDSON VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE

TROY, NY 12180

ADMINISTRATIVE CODE FOR NON-TEACHING PROFESSIONAL PERSONNEL

Approved by Last Updated:

Board of Trustees December 22, 2020

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

APPOINTMENTS	100.00
Equal Employment Opportunities	100.10
Titles	100.20
Civil Service Status	100.30
Annual Appointments	100.40
Professional Freedom & Responsibility	100.50
JOB DESCRIPTIONS, EVALUATIONS, PROMOTIONS & TRANSFERS,	
RETURN TO FULL-TIME TEACHING, RETIREMENT & TERMINATION	
OF EMPLOYMENT	200.00
Job Descriptions	200.10
Evaluation	200.20
Promotions & Transfers	200.30
Return to Full-Time Teaching	200.40
Resignation	200.50
Retirement	200.60
COMPENSATION	300.00
Salary Determination	300.10
Salary Installments	300.20
Salary Statement	300.30
Longevity Compensation	300.40
Merit Service Compensation	300.50
Merit Awards	300.60
Mont / I wards	300.00
PROFESSIONAL OBLIGATIONS	400.00
Work Day/Work Week	400.10
Work Year	400.20

Ten-Month Employees	400.21
All Other Employees	400.22
Holidays	400.30
Interruption of College Operations	400.40
LEAVES	500.00
Unpaid Leave	500.10
Sick Leave	500.20
Maternity Leave	500.30
Personal Leave	500.40
Vacation Leave	500.50
Bereavement Leave	500.60
Workers' Compensation Leave	500.70
Sabbatical Leave	500.80
Jury Duty	500.90
Military Leave	500.100
Physical Examinations	500.110
Validation of Attendance	500.120
INSURANCE	600.00
Health Care Coverage	600.10
Long-Term Disability	600.20
Dental Insurance	600.30
Cost of Insurance	600.40
Election to Waive Health Coverage	600.50
Extent of Coverage	600.60
OTHER BENEFITS	700.00
Description	700.10
Tuition Waiver	700.20
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	800.00
Contributions or Gifts	800.10
Alterations to College Facilities	800.20
Use of Facilities	800.30
Excluded Confidential Classified Staff	800.40
Sick Leave Maternity Leave Personal Leave Vacation Leave Bereavement Leave	500.2 500.3 500.4 500.5 500.6
Unpaid Leave	500.10
Interruption of College Operations	
• •	400.30
All Other Employees	400.22
Ten-Month Employees	400.21

# APPOINTMENTS 100.00

## 100.10 Equal Employment Opportunities

The provisions of the Code shall be applied equally to all employees eligible for coverage thereunder without discrimination as to age, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, race, color, creed, national origin, political affiliation, or disability conditions, and governs all College employment policies, practices, and actions including, but not necessarily limited to, recruitment, employment, rate of pay, or other compensation, advancement, upgrading, promotion, demotion, termination, transfer, lay-off, leave, training, and employee benefits of whatever nature.

#### **100.20** Titles

- A. Titles assigned within the non-teaching professional employment category covered by this Code are established in accord with College, State University of New York and Rensselaer County Legislature protocols.
- B. The following titles together with College grant-funded, College part-time and all Educational Opportunity Center non-teaching professional staff except the Vice President and Executive Director of the EOC, employed as of the date of ratification of this agreement are covered by this Code and all other College employees are excluded from the provisions of this Code.

Assistant Comptroller

Assistant for Financial Analysis-Budget

Athletic Academic Coordinator and Head Football Coach

Comptroller

Confidential Assistant

Director of Admissions

Director of Athletics

Director of Budget

Director of Business Services and Procurement

Director of Center for Access and Assistive Technology

Director of Environmental Health and Safety

Director of Grants

Director of Health Services

Director of Human Resources

Director of Learning Services

Director of Public Safety

Director of Scheduling

Director of Strategic Planning

Human Resource Generalist

Library Director

Operations Assistant for Administration

Registrar

Technical Assistant

# 100.30 <u>Civil Service Status</u>

All professional employees are considered Unclassified Civil Service and, therefore, are not subject to rules and regulations of the Rensselaer County Civil Service Commission. However, the qualifications for, and the nature and scope of the duties and responsibilities, as stipulated by the College's Board of Trustees are filed with the Rensselaer County Civil Service Commission and can be obtained upon written request of the College's Record Access Officer (Vice President for Administration).

# **Annual Appointments**

- A. Employees in the job titles designated in section 100.20 are appointed within the full-time non-teaching professional classification on an annual basis.
- B. An employee may be terminated during their first year with a payout of ten (10) working days; employees with more than one (1) year but less than five (5) years of continuous full time service may be termed with a payout of thirty (30) working days; employees with more than five (5) but less than ten (10) years of continuous full time service may be termed with a payout of sixty (60) working days; employees with more than ten (10) years but less than fifteen (15) years of continuous full time service may be termed with a payout of ninety (90) working days; and employees with more than fifteen (15) years of continuous full time service may be termed with a payout of one-hundred twenty (120) working days.
- C. In addition to the payouts set forth in B above, a terminated employee shall receive the terminal benefits as described in section 200.50 of this code.

# 100.45 <u>Benefit Eligibility</u>

- A. Employees holding the above categories of appointment are eligible for all fringe benefits set forth in this Code that are not specifically excluded by appointment type.
- B. Employees having less than full-time positions who are regularly scheduled for twenty (20) or more hours of work per week shall receive vacation, sick and personal leave time on a pro rata basis.
- C. Eligibility for health and dental insurance requires appointment to a position with a minimum regular schedule of twenty (20) hours per week and the appointment to such position must be anticipated to exceed a six-month term.

# 100.50 Professional Freedom and Responsibility

- A. The non-teaching professional employee covered by this Code is entitled to freedom in the discharge of their professional responsibilities, but should be careful not to introduce into their work controversial matters which have no bearing on their employment responsibilities.
- B. The non-teaching professional employee, as a member of a learned profession and an employee of an educational institution, with the objective of serving the needs of its community, has definite professional obligations. Central to the concept of professional freedom is a co-requisite of professional responsibility. By signing an agreement to serve as an administrative employee of Hudson Valley Community

- College, the non-teaching professional agrees to act in a manner that is consistent, at all times, with the objectives of the College. The objectives of the College are stated in the annual College Catalog and in the Middle States Self-Evaluation Report as well as any other document that may be created by the College from time to time.
- C. As part of the professional freedom, the non-teaching professional employee's personal life is not within the appropriate concern of the College, except in such instances where the same is detrimental to the College and/or the performance of their duties. When a non-teaching professional employee speaks or writes as a citizen, they should be free from institutional censorship or discipline. Participation or nonparticipation of a non-teaching professional employee in any lawful organization or group activity shall not in any way adversely affect their employment.
- D. As a person of learning and an educational employee, a non-teaching professional staff member has a special position in the community which imposes special obligations and should remember that the public may judge the educational profession and the institution by public utterances. Hence, at all times, the employee should be accurate; should exercise appropriate restraint; should show respect for the opinions of others; and should make every effort to indicate that they are not an institutional spokesperson, when such is the case.
- E. As part of their responsibilities, the non-teaching professional employee agrees to comply with and support the campus regulations for students, visitors and College personnel as set forth in the College Catalog as the same now exists and may hereafter be amended.

# JOB DESCRIPTIONS, EVALUATIONS, PROMOTIONS AND TRANSFERS, RETURN TO FULL-TIME TEACHING, RETIRMENT AND TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT 200.00

# **200.10 Job Descriptions**

- A. New job descriptions for personnel in the non-teaching professional classification covered by this Code shall be approved by the President of the College subject to the overall powers and responsibilities of the Board of Trustees.
- B. Job descriptions are to be reviewed annually with each employee's immediate supervisor, in conjunction with the annual evaluation process and any proposed changes should be described on the evaluation report for consideration by the President. In the event that an employee and their supervisor are in disagreement as to the duties and responsibilities set forth in the employee's job description, or proposed changes in the job description, the employee may appeal the same up to the Vice President having responsibility for their administrative unit, or, in the case of administrators reporting to a Vice President or whose supervisor reports directly to the President, such appeal may be made to the President of the College. The decision of the Vice President or President shall be final and binding and shall constitute the exclusive remedy of the appeal process.
- C. Each non-teaching professional employee will annually receive a copy of their official job description through the evaluation process.

- D. Except during vacation periods or as otherwise approved by Administration, College funded non-teaching professional personnel are not eligible for compensation for work performed in conjunction with grant and/or contract projects at Hudson Valley Community College.
- E. In general, professional non-teaching personnel should not hold coaching assignments. However, applications for such will be considered on an individual basis and if the performance of such coaching assignments does not interfere with the completion of their full-time assignments, and if approved by their administrative supervisor, professional non-teaching personnel may be appointed to coaching positions.

# 200.20 Evaluation

- A. Performance evaluation is essential for an accurate assessment of the effectiveness of individual performance and the general efficiency of administrative services. To be most effective, evaluation should be conducted on an on-going basis. However, in order for each employee to have a firm understanding of their performance over a given period of time, as viewed by their immediate supervisor, annually, a written summary evaluation report will be prepared. The evaluation report will be discussed between the employee and their immediate supervisor, with the employee being able to make written comments as they deems appropriate.
- B. In the event that an employee feels that their supervisor's evaluation does not truly reflect their performance, the employee may appeal their evaluation up to the Vice President having responsibility for their administrative unit, or, in the case of administrators reporting to a Vice President or whose supervisor reports directly to the President, such appeal may be made to the President of the College. In any event, those statements giving rise to the differences of opinion must be substantiated, or deleted from the evaluation report. The decision of the Vice President or President shall be final and binding and shall constitute the exclusive remedy of the appeal process.
- C. In addition to the formal evaluation procedures described above, anyone generating or receiving reports, letters, memoranda or written material which relates favorably or unfavorably to the capabilities, talent, character, reputation, qualifications or abilities of any person or persons employed by or associated in any capacity with Hudson Valley Community College shall forward a copy of same to the Vice President for Administration, who has been designated as Records Access Officer under the Freedom of Information Law. The Vice President for Administration will review the material in question and inform the concerned employee whether or not it has been placed in their personnel records and that they are free to examine the same. In the event that an employee does not agree with the determination made by the Vice President for Administration as to whether or not a document is to be placed in their personnel records, they may submit a written appeal of that decision to the President of the College, who will make a determination binding on all parties.
- D. No information concerning any individual shall be made public prior to that person having an opportunity to examine the same.
- E. Failure to adhere to the aforementioned shall be construed as an infraction of College policy and, therefore, subject to disciplinary action.

F. The above shall not, however, apply to confidential references furnished by request, where representations have been made to the supplier that any information supplied will remain confidential.

# 200.30 Promotions and Transfers

Promotions and transfers within the professional classification covered by this Code are possible and, where practical, encouraged. Notices of all available positions will be advertised on the Hudson Valley Community College website and appropriate media. Detailed information about any position so advertised can be obtained from the Office of Human Resources. Promotions are made by recommendation of the appropriate administrative supervisor and approved by the President of the College subject to the overall powers and responsibilities of the Board of Trustees.

# **Return to Full-time Teaching**

- A. Non-teaching professional personnel covered by this Code who hold academic rank (an individual who was on a tenured faculty appointment prior to appointment as an NTP) based on prior teaching service at Hudson Valley Community College wishing to return to full-time teaching must submit written notification to this effect by no later than January 1, to be effective for the following academic year. Applications made in variance with this policy will be approved at the discretion of the President of the College.
- B. Non-teaching professional personnel who do not hold academic rank may make application for conversion to full-time teaching, which will be approved at the discretion of the President of the College.
- C. When a non-teaching professional employee who holds academic rank based on prior teaching service at Hudson Valley Community College reverts to full-time teaching, they will be assigned to a department consistent with the needs of the College in accordance with their credentials, experience and expertise, and their salary at the time of their appointment to the non-teaching professional staff and provided a salary equal to that which they would have received had they remained a member of the teaching faculty.
- D. In the case of a non-teaching professional employee who does not hold academic rank based on prior teaching service who is approved for conversion to full-time teaching, their salary will be at the discretion of the President of the College.
- E. Return to full-time teaching status will cancel the right to accrue vacation as well as those other rights peculiar to the non-teaching professional classification. In the case of unused vacation accruals, non- teaching professional employees reverting to full-time teaching status will be paid for all vacation days not liquidated by the effective date of their change in status. Sick leave accruals at the time of the change in status, in excess of the maximum allowed in the Faculty Association agreement will be forfeited.

# 200.50 Resignation

A. Non-teaching professional employees covered by this Code shall provide the College with no less than twenty (20) working days advance notice of their intent to resign from the employ of the College.

B. The following terminal benefits will be provided to non-teaching professional employees who resign pursuant to the foregoing.

# 200.51 <u>Health Insurance Program</u>

Coverage will continue until the last day of the month in which the employee's resignation is effective; premiums paid by employees for coverage beyond the foregoing shall be refunded.

## 200.52 Retirement System

The College will continue to make contributions to the employees' retirement system through the effective date of resignation. Employees with vested rights in a retirement system will retain those rights.

# **200.53** Vacation Accruals

Employees who resign will be paid at their regular salary rate through the final date of employment for all accrued vacation time.

# 200.54 <u>Personal Leave</u>

The College makes no payments at the time of resignation for any unused personal leave time.

# 200.55 Sick Leave

- A. An employee not eligible to retire under their retirement program who has twenty (20) years of compensated full-time service at the College and who elects to resign shall be entitled to a lump sum payment equal to the dollar value of fifty percent (50%) of their accumulated sick leave.
- B. An employee not eligible to retire under their retirement program who has twenty (20) years of compensated full-time service at the College in lieu of the lump sum payment above outlined may at their option, make an irrevocable election to have the sum to which entitled upon termination as set forth in the above paragraph credited to an account for the payment of their premium cost of the College health insurance plan following resignation under the same terms and conditions as provided for retirees under paragraph 200.61 (A).

# 200.60 Retirement

- A. Requirements applicable to retirement shall be in accord with an employee's selected retirement system as well as applicable state statutes.
- B. Employees planning to retire should provide the College with as much advance notice as possible but thirty (30) working days advance notice is required.
- C. The following describes the terminal and other benefits available to personnel leaving the employ of the College by reason of retirement:

# **200.61** Health Insurance Program

A. An employee eligible to and who does retire under their retirement program shall have the irrevocable option of applying the dollar value of their accumulated sick leave credited to an account for the purpose of insurance premiums during the retirement of said employee. To be eligible for this benefit, the retiring employee must have

- completed a minimum of five (5) years of compensated full-time service at Hudson Valley Community College. Upon exhaustion of this account, the premiums for health insurance will be paid by the retiree.
- B. Individual health insurance premiums shall be paid with fifty-percent (50%) employee contribution through accrued sick leave benefit (account) or direct contribution and fifty-percent (50%) will be paid by the College. In addition, the College will contribute a portion of the family health insurance premium for retirees with the annual increase in dependency coverage borne equally by the College and the retiree.
- C. In the event that an employee who has exercised the option available under this section dies prior to exhausting the dollar equivalent of their sick leave accruals, the employee's dependents theretofore (spouse (who is not covered by the preceding sentence) and/or eligible children), if any, shall, so long as eligible, continue to receive the College health insurance plan until the exhaustion of such account. If at the time of the death of said employee, their spouse was/is an employee of the College, and the deceased employee had retired having exercised an option available under this section, the remaining dollar value in the deceased's account will be added to the amount in their spouse's account and used to pay their health insurance premium or eligible dependent(s).
- D. At the time of retirement the retiree may, at their further irrevocable option, have deducted from the dollar value of their accumulated sick leave a sum up to forty percent (40%) of the dollar value of their accumulated sick leave and be paid the same; the balance as heretofore outlined constituting an account to cover payment of the retiree's health insurance premiums.
- E. An employee eligible to retire under conditions set forth in paragraph 1(A) not electing the options provided under paragraphs 1(A) or 1(C) hereof shall be entitled to a lump sum payment equal to the dollar value of fifty percent (50%) of their accumulated sick leave.
- F. In the event an employee dies prior to retirement or resignation, at the irrevocable option of the spouse or estate representative of the deceased employee, the dollar value of fifty percent (50%) of the deceased employee's sick leave accruals on the date of their death may be paid in a lump sum to the spouse or estate of the deceased employee; or the sum to which entitled (50% of the deceased employee's sick leave accruals) may be credited to an account for the payment of the premium costs of the College health insurance plan for the deceased employee's surviving dependents as provided in paragraph 1(B) hereof.
- G. Employees shall annually receive a statement as to their sick leave accruals.
- H. For the sole purpose of calculating the value of accumulated sick leave, the President of the College, at their discretion, may consider all or any portion of any stipend(s) paid to an employee within the last five (5) years of employment of said employee.

# 200.62 Retirement System

The College will continue to make contributions to the retirement system through the effective date of an employee's retirement.

# **200.63** Vacation Accruals

The College will pay retirees at their regular salary rate at the time of retirement for all accrued vacation at the time of retirement. For the sole purpose of calculating the value of the accrued vacation of a retiree, the President of the College, in their discretion, may consider all or any portion of any stipend(s) paid to a retiree within the last five (5) years of their retirement.

# 200.64 Personal Leave

Hudson Valley Community College does not pay unused personal leave at the time of retirement.

# COMPENSATION 300.00

# 300.10 Salary Determination

- A. Initial salaries for non-teaching professional employees covered by this Code are established within the appropriate range based on the approval of the President of the College subject to the overall powers and responsibilities of the Board of Trustees.
- B. When possible, salary increases shall be implemented on September 1 so as to coincide with the start of the College's fiscal year and, except under unusual circumstances, salary adjustments will not be made while the fiscal year is in progress. In order to be eligible for a salary increase, a non-teaching professional employee must be employed by the College for a minimum of six (6) months.

# 300.20 Salary Installments

The salary as stipulated on the salary agreement of each non-teaching professional employee covered by this Code shall be paid on a bi-weekly basis in twenty-six (26) or twenty-seven (27) approximately equal installments depending upon the number of pay periods contained in the fiscal year.

# 300.30 Salary Statement

Non-teaching professional personnel covered by this Code will receive an annual salary statement setting forth their salary, appointment status and title.

# 300.40 <u>Longevity Compensation</u>

A. Employees who are regularly scheduled for twenty (20) or more hours of work per week with the following years of service at the College shall receive base salary longevity compensation or appropriate pro-ration thereof as indicated:

5 years	\$254
10 years	\$316
15 years	\$378
20 years	\$504

25 years	\$631
30 years	\$818
35 years	\$1106

- B. Longevity compensation shall be payable 1 September of the contract year following the completion of the above stated years of service. Longevity compensation shall be cumulative as employees continue in non-teaching professional service at the College.
- C. In the event the College provides a higher monetary value for longevity compensation for the Non-Teaching Professional Association those employees covered under this Code shall receive the same as the bargaining unit.

## 300.50 Merit Service Compensation

- A. Employees who are regularly scheduled for twenty (20) or more hours of work per week with ten (10) years continuous service with the College whose two (2) immediately previous evaluations were at or beyond "Highly Effective" which constitutes the supervisor's (evaluator's) recommendation of entitlement to Merit Service Compensation shall receive Merit Service Compensation of \$316 or appropriate pro-ration thereof, added to base salary. Employees with fifteen (15) years continuous service, subject to the same preconditions, shall receive \$631, or appropriate pro-ration thereof. Employees with twenty (20) years continuous service, subject to the same preconditions, shall receive \$943, or appropriate pro-ration thereof. Employees with twenty-five (25) years continuous service, subject to the same preconditions, shall receive \$1129 or appropriate pro-ration thereof. Employees with thirty (30) years of continuous service, subject to the same preconditions, shall receive \$1692 or appropriate pro-ration thereof.
- B. In the event that an employee fails to qualify for Merit Service Compensation at ten (10), fifteen (15), twenty (20), twenty-five (25) or thirty (30) years of service, such employee shall nevertheless be eligible therefore in subsequent years, between eligibility intervals, subject to the same preconditions.
- C. In the event the College provides a higher monetary value for Merit Service Compensation for the Non-Teaching Professional Association those employees covered under this Code shall receive the same as the bargaining unit.

# 300.60 Merit Awards

The College may, in its sole discretion, grant base salary adjustment merit awards. Such merit awards will be approved by the President of the College no later than May 31.

# PROFESSIONAL OBLIGATIONS 400.00

#### 400.10 Work Day/Work Week

A. The normal working day is either 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. or 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, exclusive of a designated one hour lunch period, for a total work week of thirty-seven and one-half (37 ½) hours, except during that period when

"summer hours" are in effect; during such period, the normal working day will end at either 3:30 or 4:00 p.m. When "summer hours" are in effect, lunch periods are to be reduced from the normal time of one (1) hour to thirty (30) minutes.

- B. Many of the employment titles covered by this Code carry with them professional responsibilities not measured by the standard work day, and, therefore, people in those positions should not feel constrained in the performance of their duties. Additionally, it may be necessary to assign personnel outside the time frame set forth in paragraph A above so as to provide equal services to students taking courses in the evening hours.
- C. Where a position is not directly related to student class schedules, or where the normal working day does not have a bearing on the responsibilities of the position, an employee holding that position may request to work a flexible schedule which more closely accommodates the time demands of the position. In no event, however, shall a flexible schedule be requested in order to obtain other employment or produce a work week of under thirty-seven and one-half (37 ½) hours or cause the employee to be on campus fewer than four (4) of the normal five (5) working days each week.

# 400.20 Work Year

# 400.21 <u>Ten-Month Employees</u>

Non-teaching professional employees covered by this Code having a 10-month work year obligation shall be employed on a fiscal year basis (September 1 - August 31). Their work year shall be equal to the number of workdays exclusive of forty-five (45) non-accruable vacation days and the number of holidays as set forth in this Code.

# 400.22 All Other Employees

All other non-teaching professional employees covered by this Code are appointed on a fiscal year basis (September 1 - August 31). Their work year shall be equal to the number of workdays exclusive of accrued vacation time and the number of holidays as set forth in this Code.

## 400.30 Holidays

A. For the term of this Code, non-teaching professional employees covered by this Code will be accorded the following holidays, with pay, where such holidays fall on a normal College work day:

Labor DayNew Year's DayColumbus DayPresidents' DayThanksgiving DayGood Friday

The Friday following Thanksgiving

The Monday following Easter Sunday

The Day prior to Christmas Day

Christmas Day

Memorial Day

Independence Day

The Day prior to New Year's Day

B. If a listed holiday falls on a Saturday or on a Sunday, the previous Friday or the following Monday respectively, shall be observed as the holiday; provided, however, that if such celebrated Friday or Monday is a scheduled student school day, then such a day will be credited as an additional vacation day to the employee who is required to work on such a day.

C. The College may designate an alternate holiday to Columbus Day and/or Presidents' Day upon notice to employees on or before September 1<sup>st</sup> of the College year in which the holidays fall.

## 400.40 Interruption of College Operations

- A. Periodically, due to extreme weather conditions or other emergencies, it will be necessary for the College to cancel classes or to cease operations completely. When such situations develop, the College will have two codes. They are:
  - a. CLASSES ARE CANCELLED: This means that students and faculty should not report to the campus. All non-teaching professional personnel are expected to report for work.
  - b. **COLLEGE IS CLOSED:** All employees are excused from work except members of the security force and those personnel designated by the President to maintain or restore College operations.
- B. Area television and radio stations will be notified of the decision to either cancel classes or that the College is closed. It should be noted that external media outlets most often group school announcements and might misrepresent the College's closing intent. It is, therefore, suggested that non-teaching professional employees call the College's Security Office, or receive communication through email, texts or other forms of communication where they will receive the exact information. Misunderstanding of closing information will not be considered excused leave and such time taken will be chargeable to leave accruals.
- C. When extreme weather conditions develop during the day, notification of the cancellation of classes or the closing of the College will be communicated to all offices on campus.
- D. When the College is forced to close for a portion of a day or for an entire day, employee time off shall be recorded as "Administrative Leave" (AL): such leave is not charged against any leave category. If classes are cancelled and an employee chooses not to report for work, time missed in such circumstances will be charged to personal or annual leave.
- E. Class cancellation and College closing information is specific to the main College campus. Closing decisions affecting off campus locations will be made and communicated separately and will be dependent upon the weather and/or emergency conditions at the other locations. Use of AL, when these other locations are delayed or closed, will follow the above practice.

# **LEAVES 500.00**

#### 500.10 Unpaid Leave

A. A leave of absence up to one (1) year may be granted upon application provided such application is made one (1) semester in advance of the date the leave is scheduled to begin and that such leave is concurrent with the College's academic year or, in the case

of child care leave, five (5) months in advance of the date the leave is scheduled to begin. Applications made in variance with this policy will be granted at the discretion of the College.

B. Leaves covered by this policy include those directly related to professional development, such as advanced study, exchange teaching or other employment; those which allow for a term in a professional or political office; and those for child care.

Employees granted unpaid leaves of absence as defined by this policy statement will, upon return to active employment status, receive a salary equal to that which they would have received had they worked at the College during such period.

# 500.20 Sick Leave

A. Each employee on a twelve-month (12-month) appointment shall be credited with twelve (12) days of sick leave at the beginning of each fiscal year, i.e., September 1, prorated as to employees employed mid-year. Those employees having work years of ten (10) months duration will be credited with the appropriate pro rata share of the twelve (12) day annual allotments.

B. Sick leave may be accrued from year to year in accordance with the following:

Employees with ten (10) month 226 days

appointments

Employees with twelve (12) month

appointments

226 days maximum accrual

260 days maximum accrual

(except as modified by Section

500.40 of the Code.

C. Up to fifteen (15) days of current and/or accumulated sick leave a year may be used in the event of death or illness within the immediate family. "Immediate family" is understood to mean: spouse, child, parents, foster children, grandparents, siblings, as well as, step-parents, and step-children. Use of sick leave in the event of death or illness not within the immediate family will be considered on an individual basis.

- D. Sick leave shall be used in units of one (1) hour. Validation of sick leave usage, including disability arising out of pregnancy, may be requested in the form of a physician's certificate. In the case of pregnancy, the period of temporary disability caused by or contributed to by childbirth or the recovery therefrom may be charged to sick leave. In case of scheduled medical or dental appointments, sick leave may be used in units of one-half (1/2) hour.
- E. Upon exhaustion of all sick and personal leave accumulations and upon the submission of a physician's verification of total disability, employees shall be entitled to extended sick leave at half- salary equal to one pay period for each year of full-time employment at the College.
- F. Except in emergencies, employees are required to notify their immediate supervisor of their sick leave absence within two (2) hours of the start of their work day.
- G. An employee who is eligible for a sick leave payout pursuant to section 200.61 and who has less than two-hundred and sixty (260) sick leave days accrued, may increase the number of accrued days to two hundred and sixty (260) sick days at time of death,

retirement or termination of employment if they satisfied the following terms and conditions:

- a. The employee must have accrued two hundred and sixty (260) sick days at one time during their employment.
- b. The employee must have been unable to accrue sick days because they had accrued the maximum of two hundred and sixty (260) sick days.
- c. The employee who dies (or their spouse or estate representative), retires or terminates must provide the College with the notice and/or election as provided in section 200.61.
- d. The number of days an employee may use to restore their accrued sick leave to two hundred and sixty (260) sick days is limited to the number of days that the employee was unable to accrue because they were at the maximum accrual number up to a maximum of thirty-five (35) days.
- e. The employee may use said extra days only to replenish days for which they validly took sick leave. In no event shall this provision be used to increase the number of accrued sick leave days beyond two hundred and sixty (260) days at time of death, retirement or termination of employment.

# 500.30 Maternity Leave

Unpaid leave of absence relating to child care or the period immediately preceding the disability arising out of a pregnancy shall be available consistent with the unpaid leave provisions hereof. Such leave shall be for a period of up to one (1) year commencing with childbirth or the onset of the disability.

#### 500.40 Personal Leave

- A. Employees are annually entitled to three (3) days (22.5 hours) of personal leave without loss of pay for urgent personal business which cannot be deferred, for the observance of religious holidays, or the observance of legal or public holidays not addressed in Section 400.30 of this Code. Based on the foregoing, personal leave is, generally, not taken in conjunction with either vacation leave or holidays. Persons coming into the employ of the College after the start of the fiscal year (September 1) will be granted the pro rata share of the personal leave allotment based on the effective date of their appointment and the end of the fiscal year (August 31).
- B. Personal leave requests must be approved by an employee's immediate supervisor, and, except in emergency situations, requests must be submitted in advance and approved in writing. When personal leave must be taken due to an emergency situation, employees shall report their absence or intended absence to their immediate supervisor or their designee at the first possible opportunity.
- C. Each instance of personal leave must be reported on the next attendance report.
- D. Personal leave may not be taken in units of less than one-half (1/2) hour.
- E. At the expiration of the fiscal year, those employees who have not exhausted their personal leave days shall have such unused leave converted to sick leave and added to their sick leave accruals despite the accrual limit stipulation in 500.2 of the Code.

# 500.50 <u>Vacations</u>

- A. Non-teaching employees covered by this Code having a ten-month work year obligation, as described in section 400.21 of this Code, are not eligible for vacation leave as described in this section of the Code.
- B. Professional non-teaching employees having twelve-month work year obligations are authorized and shall accrue vacation in accordance with the following table:

Years of Employment	Accrual Rate	Total Annual Accrual
	Per Pay Period	
1 though 10	7.50 hrs.	26 working days
More than 10	9.25 hrs.	32 working days

- C. In the event the College provides a larger accrual for the Non-Teaching Professional Association those employees covered under this Code shall receive the same as the bargaining unit.
- D. Vacation leave is accrued on a pay period basis; however, such leave cannot be accrued in excess of forty (40) days with accrual computations being made annually on the first day of September. Vacation accruals in excess of the forty (40) day maximum on the date of accrual computation (September 1), at the option of the employee, shall be: 1) credited to sick leave accrual subject to the accrual maximum stipulated in Section 500.20 hereof; or 2) shall be credited to a "Vacation Bank" for which payment to the employee will be made when the employee resigns their position with the College, retires or reverts to faculty status.
- E. Additionally, employees may opt to withdraw in cash at their current daily rate any amount up to their individual maximum balances in the "Vacation Bank," upon ten (10) working days' notice submitted to the Office of Human Resources. Payment of "Vacation Bank" withdrawals shall occur no later than the first pay period following expiration of the notification period and shall be at the then applicable employee's daily rate of pay. For purposes of determining the employee's daily rate of pay, the President of the College, in their discretion, may consider all or a portion of any stipend(s) paid to an employee within the last five (5) years of their employment.
- F. Non-teaching professional personnel are encouraged to use vacation time and shall be expected to take no less than two (2) weeks' vacation in the course of a fiscal year. Vacation bank computations shall be made in accordance with the two (2) week vacation expectation.
- G. Vacation should, however, be scheduled to minimize department/division interruptions and must be approved in writing, in advance, by the appropriate administrative supervisor. Vacation leave may not be taken in less than one (1) hour units and is limited to single day usage. Those employees holding student related positions should schedule vacations to coincide with academic recesses or periods of reduced student activity.

H. Upon written request submitted one (1) pay period in advance to the Vice President of Administration, employees covered by this code, may obtain in advance, salary to be paid during a vacation period where such period exceeds two (2) full weeks.

# 500.60 <u>Bereavement Leave</u>

Non-teaching professional employees covered by this Code will be granted up to four (4) consecutive working days without loss of pay in the event of a death in the employee's immediate family. For the purposes hereof, "immediate family" shall be: spouse, child, grandchild, foster/step-child, parent, grandparent, brother, sister, mother-in-law, father-in-law, or blood relative residing in the employee's household. The first day of such leave shall be the first work day immediately subsequent to the death of the family member.

# 500.70 Workers' Compensation Leave

When an employee is absent from their duties as a result of on-the-job injury covered by Workers' Compensation, they will be paid at the level of their salary which would otherwise have been due but for said injury (less the amount of any Workers' Compensation award made for temporary disability due to said injury) for the period of six (6) months from date of injury, and no part of such actions will be charged to leave to which they may be otherwise entitled.

# 500.80 <u>Sabbatical Leave</u>

- A. Sabbatical leaves of absence may be granted to non-teaching professional employees covered by this Code upon application to and approval by the President of the College. The total number of sabbatical leaves granted shall be subject to budget limitations and guidelines established by the College.
- B. Non-teaching professional personnel become eligible for sabbatical leave after the completion of six (6) years of service at the College. Application for a sabbatical leave may be filed during the sixth (6<sup>th</sup>) or subsequent year of employment, to be effective for the seventh (7<sup>th</sup>) or subsequent year of employment. At the option of the employee, the sabbatical leave request may be for one (1) or two (2) academic semesters at full salary. Alternative leave durations not exceeding two (2) academic semesters and alternative compensation patterns not exceeding full salary, may be proposed by an employee requesting a sabbatical where the purposes and objectives of the sabbatical are not consistent with the traditional duration of an academic semester (16 weeks). The salary so paid shall not be reduced by any grant or fellowship received by the employee.
- C. Sabbatical leave recipients and the terms of their remuneration shall be determined by the President of the College. Applications for leave must be made in writing to the President of the College with a copy to the employee's immediate supervisor and to the Sabbatical Leave Committee by January 31 of the year preceding the academic year in which the leave is to be taken. As part of the application for sabbatical leave, employees shall clearly indicate the purpose of the leave and, if the leave is for study, the name of the institution and the courses to be pursued and their relationship to the applicant's professional position. Application for leaves for professional or educational experience must state the specific education objective and the direct relationship to the

applicant's field of endeavor. Applications should be endorsed by the employee's immediate supervisor with the recommendations and reasons therefor at the time the application is submitted.

- D. Any member of the non-teaching professional staff on sabbatical leave remains an employee of the College and their salary will be subject to the normal deductions for Social Security, income tax, health insurance and other deductions. Upon return from sabbatical leave, the employee will be restored to the position held prior to the sabbatical leave or to a compatible position, one equal to that had they been in regular attendance at the College during the period of the sabbatical leave.
- E. There shall exist a Sabbatical Leave Committee composed of five (5) employees of the College appointed by the President of the College, two (2) of whom shall be non-teaching professional bargaining unit members. The Committee shall review each application; rate each as to merit; list the same in priority order and forward its recommendations to the office of the President of the College. An applicant may not be a member of the Committee.
- F. Following a sabbatical leave, an employee is expected to return and complete full-time service to the College in the ratio of twice the actual time granted on a fully paid sabbatical. For example, a one-semester fully paid sabbatical shall require a return service commitment of thirty-two (32) weeks; a ten (10) week, one-half (1/2) paid sabbatical, shall require a return service commitment of ten (10) weeks. The College may require as a condition precedent to the granting of a sabbatical leave, the execution of instruments to secure the repayment of salary received when on sabbatical leave in the event of the failure of the employee to return and complete such service.
- G. Within sixty (60) days of return from sabbatical leave, an employee shall make a detailed report to the President of the College covering their sabbatical activities and accomplishments.

# **500.90 Jury Duty**

Non-teaching professional employees covered by this Code scheduled for jury duty shall be released from employment responsibilities for such duties which conflict with their professional responsibilities without loss of salary. Public employees are not supposed to receive pay from the court (since you are being paid anyway). Do not sign any form provided by the court that would produce pay for service. Federal jury service is an exception to this rule.

# 500.100 <u>Military Leave</u>

- A. In accord with Section 243 of Military Law, the College will grant military leave with full pay to all non-teaching professional staff members who, as members of a military reserve unit, perform an ordered military tour of duty up to a maximum of thirty (30) days in any fiscal year.
- B. Notice of military obligation will be reported to the immediate supervisor and the Office of Human Resources as soon as orders are received for military duty. Verification of orders may be required.

# 500.110 Physical Examinations

An employee will be required to undergo a physical examination when returning from a leave in excess of one (1) semester, to which examination may be conducted by the College's Director of Medical Services or will be paid for by the College. This does not preclude the College if it reasonably believes that an employee is abusing sick leave or otherwise unable to accomplish the essential tasks of the job, to undergo a physical examination.

# **500.120 Validation of Attendance**

All employees covered by this Code will submit a bi-weekly record of attendance. The submission of this record, approved by the employee's immediate supervisor, will provide the College with the authority to issue regular salary checks.

# INSURANCE 600.00

# 600.10 Health Care Coverage

- A. As of the date of this Code, the College makes available as primary plans to all fulltime employees and their dependents group indemnity, Blue Shield NENY; Capital District Physicians Health Plan Premier \$15; and MVP C0-Plan 15 Plus. The College will continue to make available to those parties coverage as congruent as possible to these primary plans. With respect to primary plans, the College reserves the right to change carriers or to self- insure, as it deems appropriate, so long as the coverage and benefits remain as congruent as possible with those currently provided. The College agrees to attempt to minimize changes by incumbent providers and HMOs from one plan to another. However, the College will not be responsible for changes unilaterally imposed by an insurance provider or HMO in benefits, co-payment provisions or deductibles. The practice of reimbursing the \$240 in-patient deductible of the hospitalization portion of indemnity coverage will continue to be in effect regardless of change in indemnity plan provider or changes in plan parameters. As of the date of this Code, the participants in the Blue Shield NENY Group Indemnity Plan, or any successor plan, are subject to a prescription drug co-pay of five dollars (\$5.00) for Generic drugs and twenty dollars (\$20.00) for other than generic drugs. The co-pay responsibility of such participants shall increase in the same manner as the increase in co-pay responsibility of participants in the Capital District Physicians Health Plan Premier \$15, or any successor plan, provided however, that during this agreement the drug co-pay for participants in the indemnity plan shall not increase beyond ten dollars (\$10.00) for generic drugs and thirty dollars (\$30) for other than generic drugs.
- B. The College may continue to provide alternatives to the three primary health plans identified above which make available less costly coverage. It is understood that these are alternatives to primary plans and enrollment replaces coverage under a primary plan. It is also understood that such alternatives are offered at the discretion of the College and such alternatives are not subject to any criterion of congruency with primary plans. With respect to the alternative plans, the College reserves the right to

self insure or to provide as many or as few plans as it deems appropriate with no restriction on included benefit or coverage levels.

# 600.20 Long-term Disability

The College shall continue to provide all full-time employees a long-term disability insurance plan at benefit levels currently in effect as described in the plan available in the Office of Human Resources. The College reserves the right to change providers or to self-insure provided that existing benefit levels are maintained or enhanced.

# 600.30 <u>Dental Insurance</u>

The College shall continue to provide all full-time employees a dental plan whose benefits are equivalent to the dental plan now in effect for employees of the County of Rensselaer. Should the level or scope of benefits provided under the county-wide plan be increased for county employees, the same increase(s) shall automatically be accorded to eligible employees covered by this Code.

# 600.40 <u>Cost of Insurance</u>

- A. The College shall continue to pay 100% of the cost of individual dental and long-term disability coverage.
- B. The employee shall pay twenty-five percent (25%) of the premium cost of their health insurance (individual and dependent coverage) for the first three (3) years of their employment provided, however, that if the cost under this subsection is less than the cost under the annually published rates the employee shall pay the cost calculated under published rates. Furthermore, upon the expiration of the three (3) year period, the College shall contribute 100% of the cost of all individual primary health insurance plan coverage for each full-time employee. Moreover, the employer shall contribute to the dependency cost of all health insurance coverage in accordance with the applicable annual published rates posted by the Office of Human Resources, and the employee will pay the remainder.

# 600.50 Election to Waive Health Coverage

Each employee (except employees whose spouses are also covered by an HVCC family plan) may elect to refuse participation in the College Health Insurance Program and may provide for their own health insurance. The Employer will place fifty (\$50) dollars in a trust account each month that the employee is eligible but does not elect coverage. The employee will receive the funds so accumulated by December 15 of each year or upon termination. An employee may elect to resume coverage the first of the month following a qualifying event.

#### 600.60 Extent of Coverage

The extent of coverage under the health, dental and disability plans, including any HMOs and/or self-insured plans referred to in this Code shall be governed by the terms and conditions set forth in said policies or plans or benefits thereunder and shall be resolved in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in said policies or plans. The failure of any insurance carrier(s) or plan administrator(s) to provide any benefit

for which it is contracted or is obligated shall result in no liability to the College or County. However, in instance where the College agrees that an insurance provider may not be meeting its contractual obligations, the College agrees to contact the insurance provider on the employee's behalf.

# OTHER BENEFITS 700.00

# 700.10 Description

Benefits including, but not limited to, retirement benefits, health insurance plans, tuition waivers (exclusive of community interest courses), workers' compensation, disability insurance, and recreation programs will be available to non-teaching professional personnel covered by this Code.

# 700.20 <u>Tuition Waiver</u>

A. The College will provide a maximum of \$2000 annually for a tuition waiver for all matriculated or non-matriculated children or spouses of Code covered non-teaching professional staff. A Code covered non-teaching professional staff member may apply for a tuition waiver on behalf of a child/children/spouse in Fall, Spring and Summer terms. The application period will open eight (8) weeks before a term and will end one (1) week before a term (the term will be defined by Banner). Waivers will be distributed on a first-come, first-served basis up to the \$2000 limit in each year. At the discretion of the College, the amount designated for tuition waivers may be changed due to fiscal circumstances in any given year. The required application for a tuition waiver and its submission and payment shall be in accord with the procedures developed by the Office of Human Resources in consultation with the Vice President of Administration and the Chief Financial Officer.

# MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 800.00

# 800.10 <u>Contributions or Gifts</u>

Employees covered by this Code shall not at any time:

- A. Solicit contributions from other employees, or make a donation intended as a gift for an individual in a higher official position; or
- B. Accept a gift from members of the faculty or persons on a lower administrative level than themselves.

# **800.20** Alterations to College Facilities

Any alterations in, or changes to College facilities which markedly change the appearance or change the basic functions of the facility must be proposed and approved by the President of the College in accord with the By-Laws and Policies of the Board of Trustees of Hudson Valley Community College.

# 800.30 Use of Facilities

Use of College facilities will be in accord with the By-Laws and Policies of the Board of Trustees of Hudson Valley Community College.

# 800.40 <u>Excluded Confidential Classified Staff</u>

- A. Excluded confidential classified staff who have been serving in a full-time confidential capacity for at least ten consecutive years and who have achieved permanent status in title shall be qualified to participate in the sick leave options as set forth in Sections 200.50 and 200.60 of this Code and for merit awards under Section 300.60 of this Code.
- B. Excluded confidential classified staff shall be granted leave accruals [Sick, Personal and Vacation leave] in accord with the provisions of this Code under Sections 500.20, 500.30 and 500.50.
- C. In all other respects, the terms and conditions of employment of excluded confidential classified staff shall be consistent with the provisions of the collective bargaining agreement between the College and the Non-Instructional Employees Union or successor association and applicable laws, rules and regulations.